
 

 

  
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY OCTOBER 21, 2019 IN THE CITY 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 
 

Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business are 

public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may therefore be 

subject to public disclosure.    
AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies  
1. Pledge of Allegiance  
2. Welcome 

 

G. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  
1.  Update from the West Branch City Safety Committee – Presented by Jose Gongora 

 

E. Public Comment 
Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your name and 

address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and written comments 

may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk.  

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to expedite 

the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss any item on 

the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion.   
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting October 7, 2019. 
 
2. Resolution 1845 – A Resolution of Support and Financial Commitment for the Main 

Street Program in West Branch, Iowa. 
 
3. Motion to Approve Pay Estimate Number 6 for the College Street Bridge Replacement 

Project. 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

4. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 
 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 

1. Discussion Item: Hoover’s Hometown Days 2019 and 2020.   
 
2. Resolution 1846 – A Resolution Approving Change Order #5 in the amount of 

$2,424.00 for the College Street Bridge Replacement Project. 
 
3. Resolution 1847 – A Resolution Approving Change Order #6 in the amount of 

$11,738.98 for the College Street Bridge Replacement Project.       
 
4. First Reading of Ordinance 768 Amending Title “Traffic and Vehicles” Chapter 65 

“Stop or Yield Required”. 
 
5. First Reading of Ordinance 769 Amending Title “Traffic and Vehicles” Chapter 69 

“Parking Regulations”. 
 
6.  Resolution 1848 – Approving the Submission of the City of West Branch 2018 -2019 

Annual Finance Report to the State Auditor’s Office. 
 

H. Reports  
1. City Administrator’s Report  
2. City Attorney Report  
3. City Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are 

not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 
 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting          October 7, 2019  

Council Chambers                    7:00 p.m.                                                                                                      
  
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:04 p.m.  Mayor Pro 

Tem Miller then invited the Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge 

of Allegiance.   Roll call: Council members: Colton Miller, Jodee Stoolman, Nick Goodweiler and Brian Pierce 

were present.  Jordan Ellyson was absent. Miller welcomed the audience and the following City staff:  City 

Administrator Redmond Jones, Deputy Clerk Leslie Brick, Public Works Director Matt Goodale, Police Chief 

Mike Horihan, Fire Chief Kevin Stoolman, Library Director Nick Shimmin, Park & Recreation Director Melissa 

Russell, Finance Officer Gordon Edgar, City Attorney Kevin Olson and City Engineer Dave Schechinger.    
 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

Safety Committee Update (Jose Gongora) – postponed to a future meeting 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

No comments. 

 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 

Motion to approve minutes for City Council Meeting September 16, 2019. 

Motion to approve the appointment of Ty Doermann to the Nuisance Appeal Hearing Board.  

Motion to approve Casey’s General Store #3463 – Privilege Change – adding Class B Carryout Wine effective 

11/1/2019. 

Resolution 1841 – Authorizing an amount not to exceed $2,873 for artist services from the University of Iowa for the 

design and development of a mural. 

Motion to approve a quote in the amount not to exceed $5,272.00 for carpentry services from Westgard Woodworks for 

the finishing and installation of Town Hall entry doors. 

Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

Stoolman asked where the mural was going to be placed and Jones reported that the mural would be painted on 

panels that could be moved but the desired location is where the old Casey’s building sits.  Miller stated he felt 

that Ty Doermann was an excellent choice for the Nuisance Appeal Board. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Pierce to approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES: Goodweiler, Pierce, 

Stoolman, Miller.  Absent: Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING / NON-CONSENT AGENDA  
Resolution 1842 – Approving an Amendment to that certain Subdivider’s Agreement for The Meadows 

Subdivision, Part 4, West Branch./ Move to action. 

Miller called for a motion to amend the agenda item G-1 to correct the agenda to ‘Approving an Amendment to that 

certain Subdivider’s Agreement for The Meadow’s Subdivision, Part 4.  The agenda was incorrect, however the 

supporting resolution remained unchanged. 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Goodweiler to amend agenda item G-1.  AYES:  Stoolman, Goodweiler, Pierce, 

Miller. 

Olson explained that the Subdivider’s Agreement previously approved required changes because the developer has 

decided to final plat a portion of The Meadow’s Part 4 (now known as Part 4A).  The final plat to be approved is for 

twenty-eight (28) lots which includes three (3) lots from The Meadow’s Part 3B.  Three lots from Part 3B, zoned 

RB-1 (Residence/Business), known as Lots 1, 2 & 3 are to be included with this final plat. Olson further explained 

that the remaining lots needed to be renumbered and mentioned that two lots have a minimum low opening which 

also needed to be amended from the original agreement.  Olson asked for direction regarding the sanitary sewer 

connection fee district and said that the fee was originally miscalculated and that the developer would owe an 

additional $1000.00 as shown in the amended agreement. Brad Larson, The Meadows, Inc., stated that in prior 

subdivisions they were charged two hundred fifty dollars per lot, not per dwelling.  The Council discussed and 

determined that it was an administrative error and directed Olson to remove the additional fee from the agreement 

but the developer and others will be billed according the City Code going forward on future development. 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Pierce to approve the Resolution 1842.  AYES:  Stoolman, Pierce, Goodweiler, 

Miller.  Absent:  Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 1843 – Approving the final plat for The Meadows Subdivision, Part 4A, West Branch./ Move to action. 

Motion by Pierce, second by Stoolman to approve the Resolution 1843.  AYES:  Pierce, Stoolman, Miller, 

Goodweiler.  Absent:  Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 
 
Discussion: Wapsinonic Creek widening  

Schechinger explained the project scope and said it was needed to reduce flooding in West Branch which has 

occurred many times in recent years.  Schechinger said that USGS modeling shows widening the creek downstream 

is needed and will have a positive impact with future flooding issues.  Schechinger stated that Gaskill property 

would need to be obtained in order to complete the project.  Schechinger said he had been in contact with the 

property owner and they have declined to participate.  Jones said that condemnation is imminent for the project to 

move forward.  The Council discussed other potential options of upstream basins as a solution, but Schechinger said 

those structures would help, but would not be significant enough to address the flooding issue.  The Council 

requested that Schechinger try to reach an agreement with the Gaskill’s one more time before starting the 

condemnation process. 
 
Discussion: Concerns and complaints regarding parking privileges on Division Street. 

Horihan said this issue had been raised before by Robert’s Towing who uses the street to gain access to his business.  

Horihan said that he has observed trucks parking along Division, but that it doesn’t happen often and they don’t stay 

parked very long.  Horihan said he has contacted the trucking business STS Transportation to make them aware of 

the issue to see if they could come up with a solution.  Both businesses are tenants and do not own the property 

where they conduct their businesses.  Jones suggested widening the street which is narrow and assessing the 

adjacent property owners, but Council didn’t feel that was the best solution at this time.  Horihan said he would 

continue to monitor the situation and check in with STS Transportation to see if the parking issue could be resolved 

in a different manner. 
 



 

 

Discussion: Regarding several traffic control issues and/or concerns related to new development. 

Horihan said he had received some concerns regarding traffic signage needed at some of the new intersections in the 

new housing subdivisions and asked the Council for their feedback.  Horihan suggested that a stop sign be added to 

the south end of Dawson Drive where it intersects with Main Street.  He also suggested changing a three-way stop 

at Bickford/Greenview/Cedar-Johnson be changed to a four way stop with the addition of the new event center and 

new housing on Cedar-Johnson.  Speed limit changes were also discussed for Cedar-Johnson Rd.  The Council was 

in support of the Chief’s changes and requested that the ordinances be prepared. 
 

Discussion:  Clarification on the City Council’s direction regarding a year test program to establish alcohol retail at 

the Cubby Park Pavilion. 

Russell said the Park & Recreation Commission met and changed directions on the prior suggested alcohol policy 

for Cubby Park. Russell stated that the commission agreed that alcohol sales would be hard to manage, however 

they liked the idea that allowed alcohol for adult only activities and that it would be a ‘bring your own’ policy.  The 

Council agreed that alcohol sales would not be approved but leaned more against not allowing alcohol at all.  The 

Council felt that the park is used for health and recreation and not for social drinking.  Miller suggested that if adult 

events wanted to have alcohol consumed that they should go through the Special Event Permit process.  Russell 

suggested polling residents on their thoughts regarding alcohol and report back to the Council.  Stoolman stated that 

she didn’t like alcohol on any City property.  Currently, Beranek Park and Town Hall allow alcohol consumption.  

Chief Horihan said that the West Branch Police Department is against alcohol in the parks and Russell confirmed 

that neighbors of Cubby Park are also not in favor of alcohol in the park. 
 
Discussion: Regarding a policy on waivers for sewer service charges. 

Miller stated that City Code water/sewer billing procedures brought to the Council’s attention since the last 

Council meeting, persuaded him to suggest that the Council create a policy regarding sewer forgiveness.  Miller 

said that sewer forgiveness is requested a few times each year from residents and said that the City currently does 

not have a consistent policy of when they allow them or when they deny them.  Miller suggested that the Council 

create a policy for this issue and asked staff to provide some guidance on assisting with the creation of the policy.  

Miller further suggested tabling the sewer waivers for two resident’s on the agenda until a policy has been 

established and approved by the Council.   
 
Motion to approve a sewer credit for Millie Verlo, 424 E. Main Street. /Move to action. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Stoolman to table the agenda item.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Stoolman, Miller, 

Pierce.  Absent:  Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 

Motion to approve a sewer credit for James McLain, 700 Sullivan Street. / Move to action. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Stoolman to table the agenda item.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Stoolman, Miller, 

Pierce.  Absent:  Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 1840 – Approving a Professional Service Agreement with Simmering-Cory, Iowa Codification in the 

Amount of $7,000. /Move to action. 

Deputy Clerk Brick explained that the City Code had not be recodified since 1999 and the last update was done in 

May 2015.  Since that time, more than 30 new ordinances have been adopted and need to be included in the Code.  

Brick said she had received a quote from Simmering-Cory, Iowa Codification who the City has used in the past 

and felt that the services they offer would meet the City’s needs. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Stoolman to approve the Resolution 1840.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Stoolman, 

Miller, Pierce.  Absent:  Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 1844 – Accepting the low quotes for the demolition and salvage of structures A and B at 325 E. Green 

Street (a.k.a. the former Croell Ready Mix Site)./ Move to action. 

Jones reviewed the quotes received and suggested that the low bid of one dollar be accepted from Mad Kat Farm 

for structure A and the bid of $1900 from Barnhart Custom Service be accepted for structure B.  The Council has 

no objections.  



 

 

Motion by Pierce, second by Stoolman to approve the Resolution 1844.  AYES:  Pierce, Stoolman, Goodweiler, 

Miller.  Absent:  Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 

 Motion to accept a quote from Alpha Graphics in the Amount of $692.34 for printing and mailing services for a 

postcard mailing regarding the Capital Improvement Reserve Levy which will be on the November Ballot./ Move to 

action. 

Jones presented a quote for the creation and postcard mailing informing residents of the upcoming ballot measure 

on November 5, 2019.  Jones said the purpose is to inform voters of the measure and to provide information on its 

purpose. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Pierce to approve the quote from Alpha Graphics.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Pierce, 

Stoolman, Miller.  Absent:  Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried 

 
 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones reported on his recent attendance at the Iowa League Conference in Dubuque. Jones said flooding issues 

were a topic of discussion and noted several action taken by the City of Dubuque to address their issues.  Jones 

said he would be attending the annual ICMA conference in Nashville, Tennessee the week of October 21st and 

would not be attending the next Council meeting and said the Deputy Brick would preside in his absence. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

No report. 

 

STAFF REPORTS  

No reports.   

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Goodweiler asked for an update on the completion date of the College Street Bridge Project.  Schechinger stated 

that the project is a ‘working days’ contract and that weather does play a role, however there are fifteen days 

remaining. 

 

Stoolman said she has been receiving numerous complaints on under-age drivers on golf carts on the west side of 

town.  Chief Horihan said that the department has stopped several carts and admitted that it is a problem despite 

recent public communication.  

 

Miller commented that the sidewalk connection to Northside Drive (completed by Public Works) looked great.  

Miller said that business owner Dave Peden asked for an update on the salt clean-up on his property on Cookson 

Drive.  Goodale said the clean-up project was to be complete in 2021-2022 per DNR requirements. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn by Goodweiler, second by Stoolman.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council meeting 

adjourned at 9:11 p.m.  

       

                           _________________________________________  

                                         Colton Miller, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 21, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1845 – A Resolution of Support and Financial Commitment 

for the Main Street Program in West Branch, Iowa.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  October 14, 2019  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

This Agreement is pursuant to contractual agreements between Main Street America (which 

is represented locally by the West Branch Community Development Group), and the Iowa 

Economic Development Authority to assist in the revitalization of the designated Main Street 

project area of West Branch, Iowa. 

 

This arrangement has been supported by the city for years, and this item simply continues the 

city’s long standing support for the West Branch Community Development Group’s efforts to 

revitalization, rehabilitation, and preservation of the historic downtown west branch main street. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 
 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 2 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1845 

 

RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT AND FINANCIAL COMMITMENT FOR THE 

MAIN STREET PROGRAM IN WEST BRANCH, IOWA 

 

 

WHEREAS, an Agreement between the Iowa Economic Development Authority, 
West Branch Community Development Group and the City of West Branch for the purpose 

of continuing the Main Street Iowa program in west Branch and, 

 

WHEREAS, this Agreement ls pursuant to contractual agreements between Main 

Street America and the Iowa Economic Development Authority to assist in the revitalization 

of the designated Main Street project area of West Branch, Iowa,  and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of West Branch endorses the goal of economic 

revitalization of the designated Main Street District within the context of preservation and 

rehabilitation of its historic buildings and supports the continuation of the Main Street 

Approach ™     as developed by Main Street America and espoused by Main Street Iowa. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa, meeting in regular session on October 21, 2019 that the City of West Branch 

hereby agrees to support both financially and philosophically the work of West Branch 

Community Development Group, designates the Main Street Board to supervise the 

Executive Director and commits to appoint a city official to represent the City on the local 

Main Street Board. The source of funds to support West Branch Community Development 

Group will be from general city budget. 
 

* * * * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 21st day of October, 2019. 

 

 

 

       _________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

  

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 21, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Pay Estimate Number 6 for the College Street Bridge 
Replacement Project. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / Dave Schechinger, V&K 

DATE:  October 14, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

This pay estimate in the amount of $214,380.09, is to cover work completed under the contract 

between the City of West Branch and Taylor Construction, Inc. for the College Street Bridge 

Replacement project. 

 

Pay Estimates to date on the College Street Bridge Replacement Project: 

   Pay estimate 1 - $361,163.95 

   Pay estimate 2 - $248,327.73 

   Pay estimate 3 - $360,690.11 

   Pay estimate 4 - $208,192.56 

   Pay estimate 5 - $154,055.39 

   Pay estimate 6 - $214,380.09 

 

 

 

Note:  Pay Estimates by law are approved when a public bid is accepted and awarded.  These 

items do not require additional passage by ordinance.  On July 8th of 2019 the City Council 

voted to review change orders on the consent agenda in the form of a motion for reasons of 

transparency.  This approach also cuts staff preparation time. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 3 



 

 

 



 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 21, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  October 14, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and other 

financial items that relate to City Council approved items and/or other day to day operational 

disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 4 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 21, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Hoover’s Hometown Days 2019 and 2020. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Melissa Russell, Parks and Recreation Director 

DATE:  October 14, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The 2019 Hoover Hometown Days wrap up meeting was on September 12, 2019.  Several 

activities increased in popularity such as Booster Bingo and Eastern Iowa Brass Band and the 

fireworks on the lawn.  Most of the activities remained the same in popularity or decreased in 

numbers.  The Hoover Hometown Day committee feels the decrease in the advertising budget 

has resulted in fewer visitors from outside the community attending the events.  All of the 

committees are looking at ways to modify the event to draw in more participants.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seeking Discussion and Feedback – No Action Needed 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 21, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1846 – A Resolution Approving Change Order # 5 in the 

amount of $2,424.00 for the College Street Bridge Replacement Project. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Dave Schechinger, Veenstra & Kimm, Inc 

DATE:  October 14, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
This change order was discussed and approved in September.  This is the official Change Order 

No. 5 in the amount of $2,424.00; 

 

The Fobian Brothers requested an intake and storm pipe be installed near the grain bins to deal 

with potential water damage risk.  Fobian’s had water sitting near the empty bins during a pas 

rain event.  The current 6” tile line located on the Fobian’s property is inactive due to years of 

silt build up and the outlet is undetermined.  This item corrects this problem. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Resolution 1846 / Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1846 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER #5 IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,424.00 

IN PROJECT SAVINGS FOR THE COLLEGE STREET BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 

PROJECT 

 

 WHEREAS, the College Street Bridge Project is critical to the flow of transportation 

in the West Branch Community; and  

 

 WHEREAS, this project exist in an area with older infrastructure; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this change order adjusts the contract amount due to modifications to the 

project that ultimately will result preventing property damage; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the current 6” tile line located on the private property that could open to 

water damage risk; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council was requested to assist said property protect against 

potential storm water damage.    

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has agreed to assist this very important local business. 

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve change order #5 in the amount of 

$2,424.00 for the College Street Bridge Project. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of West Branch, that 

Change Order #5 in the amount of $2,424.00 for the College Street Bridge Replacement 

Project is approved. 

 
*  *  *  *  *  *  * 

 

Passed and approved this 21st day of October, 2019. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

        Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1847 – A Resolution Approving Change Order # 6 in the 

amount of $11,738.98 for the College Street Bridge Replacement Project. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator @ Mayor’s Request 

DATE:  October 3, 2019  
     
BACKGROUND:  

Change order number 6, in the amount of $11,738.98 is for the relocation of a 2” water service 

line that was discovered during construction and in conflict with a storm sewer intake along 

East College Street.  It also includes an air release valve required on the 12” water main that is 

routed over the 24” storm sewer.  The final item is for the excavation and replacement of 

unsuitable materials beneath the roadway. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1847 / Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1847 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER #6 IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$11,738.98 IN PROJECT SAVINGS FOR THE COLLEGE STREET BRIDGE 

REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 

 WHEREAS, the College Street Bridge Project is critical to the flow of transportation 

in the West Branch Community; and  

 

 WHEREAS, this project exist in an area with older infrastructure; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this change order adjusts the contract amount due to modifications to an 

unexpected discovery during construction and in conflict with a storm sewer intake along East 

College Street; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this change order number 6 also includes an air release valve required on 

the 12” water main that is routed over the 24” storm sewer, which requires excavation and 

replacement of unsuitable materials beneath the roadway; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve change order #6 in the amount of 

$11,738.98 for the College Street Bridge Replacement Project. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of West Branch, that 

Change Order #6 in the amount of $11,738.98 for the College Street Bridge Replacement 

Project is approved. 

 
*  *  *  *  *  *  * 

 

Passed and approved this 21st day of October, 2019. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

        Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 21, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading of Ordinance 768 Amending Title “Traffic and Vehicles” 

Chapter 65 “Stop or Yield Required”. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Police Chief 

DATE:  October 15, 2019  
     
BACKGROUND:  

Recommend a Stop Sign to be Place on Dawson Drive 

The Police Department would like a stop sign to be placed on Dawson Drive (south bound) 

where is intersects with West Main St.  Main Street already carries a significant amount of 

vehicle traffic.  When Dawson Drive opens up that also will carry a significant amount of 

traffic.  
 
Code 65.02 Stop Required 

Every Driver of a vehicle shall stop before entering an intersection as required herein: 

On Dawson Street where it intersects with West Main St.    

 

The police department would like to request a stop sign to be place on Dawson Street where it 

intersects with West Orange Street, north and south approach. Would like to have a stop sign on 

West Orange Street where it intersects with Dawson Street, both the east and west approach. 

Like to make an addition to code 65.02 Stop Required 

 

Code 65.02 Stop Required 

Every Driver of a vehicle shall stop before entering an intersection as required herein: 

Dawson Street where it intersects with West Orange Street, north and south approach. 

West Orange Street where it intersects with Dawson Street, both the east and west approach. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the First Reading/ Feedback from City Council 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

ORDINANCE 768 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE "TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES" CHAPTER 65 

"STOP OR YIELD REQUIRED". 

 

WHEREAS, the West Branch City Council finds it in the best interest of the residents 

of West Branch to have a stop sign installed on Dawson Drive (south bound) where it intersects 

with West Main Street and a four-way stop on Dawson Drive where it intersects with West 

Orange Street (North, South, East and West approach) in order to provide for the safety of the 

West Branch Community. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Cedar County, Iowa: 

 

Section 1. Amendment.  The Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by the City Council of 

West Branch, Iowa by adding the following language to Title, "TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES", 

Chapter 65, "STOP OR YIELD REQUIRED", Section 65.02, STOP REQUIRED. 
 
 57.  The south bound lane of Dawson Drive to its intersection with West Main Street. 

58.  Dawson Drive on both the north and south approach to its intersection with West 

Orange Street. 

59. West Orange Street on both the east and west approach to its intersection with 

Dawson Drive. 
 
Section 2. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in 

conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 3. Adjudication.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged 

to be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance 

as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
Section 4.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 

approval and publication as required by law. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

Passed and approved this 18th day of November, 2019. 

 

First Reading:    October 21, 2019 

Second Reading: November 4, 2019 

Third Reading:      November 18, 2019 

 

             

       ________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 



 

 

  
                  
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 21, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading of Ordinance 769 Amending Title “Traffic and Vehicles” 

Chapter 69 “Parking Regulations”. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Police Chief 

DATE:  October 15, 2019  

     
BACKGROUND: 
  
Recommend No Parking on the Northside of Hilltop Dr. 300 ft. from Pedersen Street.  

The police department is getting several complaints of people parking on or near the curve 

towards the top of the hill (North side of the Road).  This would be the north side of Hilltop Dr, 

just west of Pedersen Street. The Hill and curve cause a blind spot as people try to go around the 

parked cars. Recommend a no parking sign between signs in the curve, on the north side of the 

road. The South side already has no parking.  

 

Recommending an ordinance addition to 69.08:  no parking between signs on the north side of 

Hilltop Drive, 150 feet west from Pedersen St. to 280 feet west of Pedersen St.   
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the First Reading/ Feedback from City Council 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

ORDINANCE 769 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE "TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES" CHAPTER 69 

"PARKING REGULATIONS". 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, Iowa has jurisdiction to establish Parking 

Regulations within the corporate limits of the City of West Branch; and  

 

WHEREAS, No Parking Zones shall mean, so stop, stand, or parking of a vehicle in any 

of the following designated no parking zones except when necessary to avoid conflict with other 

traffic or in compliance with the direction of a peace officer or traffic control signal; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has heretofore deemed it necessary and desirable to pass 

legislation regulating the no parking zones within the City. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Cedar County, Iowa: 

 

Section 1. Amendment.  The Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by the City Council of 

West Branch, Iowa by adding the following language to Title, "TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES", 

Chapter 69, "PARKING REGULATIONS", Section 69.08, NO PARKING ZONES. 
 

68.  The North side of Hilltop Dr., 150 feet West of Pedersen Street and 280 feet West 

of   Pedersen Street.  This includes the hill and curve on Hilltop Drive.   
 

Section 2. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in 

conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 3. Adjudication.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged 

to be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance 

as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
Section 4.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 

approval and publication as required by law. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

Passed and approved this 18th day of November, 2019. 

 

First Reading:    October 21, 2019 

Second Reading: November 4, 2019 

Third Reading:      November 18, 2019 

 

             

       ________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 21, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1848 – Approving the Submission of the City of West Branch 

2018 -2019 Annual Finance Report to the State Auditor’s Office. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon R. Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  October 15, 2019  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 
Chapter 384.22 of the Code of Iowa requires the City of West Branch to submit a City Annual 

Financial Report (AFR) for the year ending June 30, 2019 to be filed with the Office of Auditor 

of State by December 1, 2019.  It should also be noted, that Chapter 384.16 of the Code of Iowa 

requires certain information included in the AFR be used in preparing the fiscal year 2021 annual 

certified budget.  Property taxes will not be levied for fiscal year 2021 if a city fails to comply 

with statutory budgeting requirements and all state funds will be withheld (Chapter 384.16(7) of 

the Code of Iowa) until the city complies with these statutory requirements. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1848 – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1848 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SUBMISSION OF THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH 2018-

2019 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT TO THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 384.22 of the Code of Iowa requires the City of West Branch to submit a City 

Annual Financial Report (AFR) for the year ending June 30, 2019 to be filed with the Office of Auditor 

of State by December 1, 2019; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Property taxes will not be levied for fiscal year 2021 if a city fails to comply with 

statutory budgeting requirements and all state funds will be withheld (Chapter 384.16(7) of the Code of 

the Code of Iowa) until the city complies with these statutory requirements. 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the 

2018-2019 Annual Financial Report be approved and forwarded to the Iowa State Auditor’s Office. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 21st day of October, 2019. 

 

 

 

             

       ________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


